
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 21, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 
Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Amenity Center Community Room 
Somerset at the Plantation 
10401 Dartington Drive 

Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 21, 2022 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication..................................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. January 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………….Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Update Regarding FPL Arborwood CDD Tax Exemption and Rate 

2. Discussion Regarding Encroachment of Completed After-Market Pool into the LME at 
12067 Westmoreland Way, Bridgetown 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 6 

2. Engineer Report 

a. Consider Approval of Drainage Improvement Cost Options………………………………...Page 8 

3. Field Inspectors Report 

a. Update on Overspraying Issues in Somerset 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 17, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The January 17, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room at the Somerset at the 
Plantation located at 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on January 7, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as 
legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Gary Franz Present 
Vice Chairman Joan Pattison Present 
Supervisor Jack Aycock Present 
Supervisor Lawrence Carr  Absent 
Supervisor Jeff Gordish Present 

 
Staff members in virtual attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Kutak Rock, LLC 
District Engineer Josh Evans JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Others present were: Bethany Brosious of Passarella & Associates; Ryan Lorenz of Evans Engineering; and 
the following District residents:  Chris Anderson, Helen Shorey and Ed Thomas. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Evans requested the addition of Consider Proposal for Stormwater Needs Analysis.  There was a Board 
consensus to add the item under the Engineering Report. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Thomas introduced himself as being on the HOA of Marina Bay and had questions regarding 
communication about the baffles proposed on the Botanica Lakes property.  Mr. Franz stated that Mr. Aycock 
had been talking to Botanica Lakes on behalf of the CDD.  Mr. Thomas asked what would happen if Marina 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Bay said no to the project?  Mr. Aycock stated that Botanica Lakes had a different HOA board now that seems 
to have a common interest in drainage.  Mr. Franz asked if the Botanica Lakes HOA Board knows they have 
a legal responsibility to maintain the drainage structures and Mr. Evans stated that they do, as the District 
Board had sent them a letter regarding that responsibility.  Mr. Franz added that if they do not comply, sooner 
or later the CDD would need to ask South Florida Water Management District (“SFWMD”) to intervene and 
force compliance before the rainy season.  Mr. Evans pointed out that baffles were not required and are 
voluntary, but are a best practice and will help keep the structures debris free.   He added that Botanica Lakes, 
regardless of adding baffles, is still responsible for maintenance.  He then displayed a diagram of a proposed 
baffle.  Mr. Aycock stated it was his hope that the CDD would consider participating financially in the baffle 
work.  Mr. Brosious stated the project would need space around it for the baffle to work, which would require 
a buy-in from SFWMD and the Army Corps of Engineers.  Mr. Evans stated the direction from the District 
was that he assist with the design and permitting and Botanica Lakes pay for the installation.  Mr. Franz stated 
the District should proceed carefully as there could be precedence set.  He added that the District’s financial 
participation should be limited to engineering time as opposed to participating in the cost of construction.  
Upon discussion, it was agreed upon that the engineer would provide a letter to Botanica Lakes, first run by 
staff and the Chair, regarding the project to see how they want to proceed before any more funds are expended. 
Mr. Evans advised he would prepare the letter and run it by staff and the Chair, as requested. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  November 15, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The November 15, 2021, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously approving the 
November 15, 2021, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to address. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Excessive Littoral Trimming in Bridgetown 
 
Mr. Aycock advised he had a resident contact him regarding excessive trimming of the littorals in Bridgetown.  
Mr. Evans showed pictures of the area and Ms. Meneely stated that the HOA manager had been contacted and 
was going to send something out to all the residents as well as speak to the specific landowners and contractor.  
Mr. Gordish stated that the littorals come back very quickly and Mr. Hirniak expressed how beneficial of a 
plant spike rush is considered.   
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 a. Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials stating that they ran through December 2021 and represented 25% of 
the budget year.  Mr. Gordish questioned streetlight maintenance stating that Ms. Meneely had provided the 
invoices for the lights, but he still needed the plans from Mr. Evans.  He questioned why the District was not 
exempt from utility taxes to which Mr. Haber and Ms. Meneely stated they would look into the issue.  Mr. 
Gordish also asked why there were late charges and Ms. Meneely stated that normally it would be on account 
of how long it took for approvals to be obtained for making a check cycle.  Mr. Gordish questioned a bill for 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

the irrigation of Treeline at $12.43 a month and capping the meter.  Mr. Franz stated these were minor expenses 
that would be looked into and addressed. 
 
Mr. Aycock stated he was surprised that 30% of the budget was Somerset only.  Mr. Franz explained that there 
were separate assessments for each community based on the services received and the budget for each 
community is based on history.  Mr. Aycock questioned the responsibility of the City for District matters and 
Mr. Haber responded that the District was an independent unite of government and not an arm of the City. 
 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board that their next meeting was scheduled for February 21, 2022. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 
Mr. Haber gave the history on sign responsibility and reminded the Board that they directed staff to work 
with the landowner and Centex on the issue.  He furthered that Centex had agreed to terminate the agreement 
with the CDD and now he was working with the landowner so that the CDD has no responsibility for the sign.  
He added that he was waiting on an easement termination document and, once received, noted that the Chair 
had already been authorized to sign. 

 
 3.  Engineer’s Report 
  a. Discussion Regarding Plans and Timing for Somerset Pond Bank Repairs 
 
Mr. Evans went over the history and the design for yard drain details.  He stated there were 26 locations and 
he had sent this out to contractors for bids, noting the yard drain would help a lot with drainage.  He suggested 
the Board consider doing 70% this year and 30% next year.  Mr. Gordish suggested that when the work is 
being done that the HOA be notified so they can advise residents of same.  
 
 b. Consider Proposal for Stormwater Needs Analysis 
 
Mr. Evans explained that this report was required by HB53.  Mr. Haber went over the legislative requirement, 
stating that the report was due at the end of June and is specific to areas of permits and is not a budgeted 
expense. Mr. Evans stated the cost will be $8,500. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously approving the 
proposal in the amount of $8,500 for the Stormwater Needs Analysis, as presented and authorizing the Chair  
to sign. 
 
 4.  Field Inspector’s Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak stated that the lakes looked good and the invasives seemed to be under control.  He mentioned 
that he had spoken with a resident on Glastonbury who asked if the low water could be raised and he assured 
the resident that this was not unusual during the dry season.  He added that the spraying of the flow way for 
invasives was ongoing.  Mr. Franz asked about the over spraying by Clarke that was reported.  Mr. Hirniak 
responded that Clarke would take care of the issue, whether they were responsible or not.  Mr. Anderson stated 
it was random around the development and Ms. Shorey added that the turf in these areas was dead and nothing 
had been done to repair the damage.  Mr. Franz asked how many areas needed repair and Mr. Gordish advised 
it was less than 5.  Mr. Franz indicated that he saw a guy spraying with a wand from an ATV that seemed to 
be moving fast and careless.  Mr. Hirniak stated it was due to wind conditions and Clarke was aware of the 
issue and has taken responsibility for repairing the areas. Mr. Gordish stated he would have the Landscape 
Committee look at the area and send the locations to Mr. Hirniak. 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Gordish stated that there is a curio cabinet that had been thrown into the north side of the flow way stating it 
was too large for a single person to move.  Haber stated it is the districts responsibility to have it moved but it 
can be charged to the responsible party if one is determined.  Staff stated they would look into removal. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 1.  Further Discussion on Maintenance Flow Way - Aycock 
 
Mr. Aycock stated he asked for this to be on the agenda, again, as he was concerned that the property may not 
be maintained properly and therefore could be an issue with the SFWMD.  He indicated he felt like the District 
was not being a good neighbor if it expects the HOA to take care of the littorals in the District’s waterways.  
Mr. Franz pointed out that the CDD has no obligation for pond maintenance anywhere but Somerset and Mr. 
Haber added that it also has permit responsibility for Bridgetown, but Bridgetown has contractually taken 
responsibility for the maintenance.  Mr. Evans advised that he does an annual report and hands it over to the 
other developments.  Mr. Aycock opined that he believed the District should care how the flow way looks.  
Mr. Gordish stated that if Somerset pays to maintain their area, then residents outside of Somerset should pay 
for their own cosmetic issues.  Mr. Franz furthered that it is the CDD’s responsibility if the flow way is not 
functioning, but if residents do not like the way it looks, then it is not paid for by the CDD, but rather by the 
residents of the neighborhood.  Mr. Gordish asked if there were any agreements for the other side of Treeline.  
Mr. Haber indicated that the CDD owns those ponds and the flow way, but not the other aspects of the 
stormwater system.  He continued that if aesthetics benefit a certain neighborhood, the District could enter into 
an agreement whereby the respective HOA maintains the aesthetic improvements and the District allows access 
for that purpose.   The other option is the CDD can add money to the budget and increase the assessment for 
the neighborhood that benefits from it.  Mr. Thomas expressed that the HOA would need to see if they want 
to spend money on such a small area. Mr. Aycock asked if the work in Bridegetown should be supervised and 
Mr. Franz indicated that Mr. Evans does an annual inspection. Mr.  Gordish asked, and it was consensus of the 
Board, to have Mr. Evans look at the flow way during the annual lake bank inspection.   Mr. Evans summarized 
the discussion by stating that the District’s obligation was to the permit, not aesthetics.  
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Aycock, seconded by 
Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 11:07 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15


	Arborwood Community Development District - February 21, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	January 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Financials
	Consider Approval of Drainage Improvement Cost Options




